B. B. & Associates

DSIDC, Narela

Chartered Accountants Now Delhi - 140040

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of ASK Automobiles Private Limited

Report on the Audit of Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) Financial Statements

Opinion

1.

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of ASK Automobiles Private Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2024, and the statement of profit and
loss (including other comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash
flows for the year ended March 31, 2024, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary
of the material accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the
Ind AS financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, and its loss and total
comprehensive loss, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

2.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (“SAs”) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”). Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the code of ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (“the ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the annual Ind AS financial statements and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the code of ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

3.

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual report but does not include the financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Management’s Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements

4.

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements
to give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance (including other
comprehensive loss), cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards specified
in the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) under Section 133 of the
Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

5.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal

control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to Ind AS financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.,

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Ind AS financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the Ind
AS financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors
in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate
the effect of any identified misstatements in the Ind AS financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

6. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020, issued by the Central Government of
India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act ("the Order"), we give in “Annexure A” a
statement on the matters specified in paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order.

7. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books.

c¢) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the
statement of cash flows and the statement of changes in equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)

Rules, 2014.
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e)

f)

2

h)

ii.

1il.

iv.

V.

vi.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2024
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.
Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the
Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

As required under section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and the best to our
information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company,
to its director during the year is in accordance with the provision of section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to us:

The Company has no pending litigations as at March 31, 2024 which would have impact on its
financial position.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts, including derivative contracts as at March
31, 2024 for which there were material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2024.

(a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds)
by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company
from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security
or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above,
contain any material misstatement.

The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended March 31, 2024.

Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used an accounting
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log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded
in the software except as mentioned in Note 43 of Ind AS financial statements, that no audit trail
enabled at the database level for accounting software to log any direct data changes, used for
maintenance of all accounting records by the Company. Further, during the course of our audit
we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from April 1,
2023, reporting under rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on
preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirement for record retention is not applicable
for the financial year ended March 31, 2024.

For B. B. & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration number: 023670N

s Lo

Balwan Bansal
Partner
Membership No: 511341

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 17, 2024
UDIN: 24511341BKBHDQ7186
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Annexure A to Independent Auditors’ Report

In respect of Annexure A referred to in paragraph 6 under "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our Report to the members of ASK Automobiles Private Limited (“the
Company”) for the year ended March 31, 2024, we report that:

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the
books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that:

i

il.

.

(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of property, plant and equipment and relevant details of right-of-use assets.

'(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) The Company has a program of physical verification of property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets so to cover all the assets once every three years which, in our opinion, is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program,
certain property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets were due for verification during the
year and were physically verified by the Management during the year. According to the information
and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) The Company does not hold any immovable property (other than properties where the company
is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee). Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use
assets) and intangible assets during the year.

(¢) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at
March 31, 2024, for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act,
1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

(a) Inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion, the
frequency of verification by management is reasonable and the coverage and procedure for such
verification is appropriate. No discrepancies of 10% or more in aggregate for each class of
inventory were noticed in respect of such inventories.

(b) As disclosed in note 36 to the standalone financial statements, the Company has been sanctioned
a working capital limit in excess of ¥ 5,000 lakhs in aggregate from banks and/or financial
institutions during the year on the basis of security of current assets of the Company. Based on the
records examined by us in the normal course of audit of the financial statements, the quarterly
returns filed by the Company with such banks and financial institutions are in agreement with the
books of accounts of the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not made any investments in or provided security to
companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties during the year. The Company
has not provided guarantees, granted loans and advances in the nature of loans during the year to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, clause 3(iii) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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v.

Vi.

vii.

viii.

iX.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has neither made any investments nor has it given loans
or provided guarantee or security as specified under Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”). Accordingly, clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not accepted any deposits or there are no amounts which have been considered as deemed to be
deposits within the meaning of section 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of
Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(v) of the order is not
applicable to the Company.

The maintenance of cost records as specified by the Central Government under subsection (1) of
section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable on the Company during the year. Hence,
reporting under clause (vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In respect of statutory dues:

a) In our opinion, undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and Services tax, Custom Duty,
Provident Fund, Income-tax, Employees’ State Insurance Act, 1948, cess and other material
statutory dues applicable to the Company have been regularly deposited by it with the
appropriate authorities. We have been informed that the provisions of the Service Tax, Sales
Tax, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax are not applicable to the Company.

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Services tax, Custom Duty,
Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance Act, 1948, Income-tax, cess and other material
statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2024 for a period of more than six months from the
date they became payable. We have been informed that the provisions of the Service Tax, Sales
Tax, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax are not applicable to the Company.

b) There are no statutory dues that have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of

1961).

(a) According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanation
given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to any lender as
at the balance sheet date.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us including confirmations received from
banks and financial institutions and representation received from the management of the Company,
and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report that the company has not been declared a willful
defaulter by any bank or financial institution.

(c¢) In our opinion, the Company has applied the term loans for the purposes for which the loans
were obtained.

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised on short
term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) The Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Accordingly
reporting under clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable.
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Xi.

Xii.

xiii.

Xiv.

XV.

XVi.

(f) The Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Accordingly reporting
under clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

(a) The Company has not raised money by way of an initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order
is not applicable.

(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting under clause
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no
fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company have been noticed or reported during
the period covered by our Audit.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of
Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13
of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(c) The Company is not required to implement the whistle blower policy. Accordingly, clause
3(xi)(c) is not applicable.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanation given to us, transactions with related parties are in
compliance with section 188 of the Act, where applicable and the details of such related party
transactions have been disclosed in the Ind AS financial statements as required under applicable
accounting standard. The provisions of section 177 are not applicable to the Company and
accordingly reporting under clause 3(xiii) insofar as it relates to section 177 of the Act is not
applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
an internal audit system as per the provisions of section 138 of the Act which is commensurate with

the size and nature of its business.

(b) we have considered the report issued by the Internal Auditor of the Company till date for the
period under audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion during the year the
company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected
with its directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable

to the Company.

(a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clauses 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations provided to us, there is no core investment
company within the Group (as defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.
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XVil.

XViil.

XiX.

XX.

The Company has incurred cash losses amounting to INR 364.39 lakhs during the year ended
March 31, 2024, and INR 971.80 lakhs during the year ended March 31, 2023.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xviii) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe
that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an
assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on
the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that
all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged
by the Company as and when they fall due.

The provisions of sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.
Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

For B. B. & Associates
Chartered Accountants

ﬁ"‘o’ L) Z(“ﬂf

Balwan Bansal

7

Partner

Membership No: 511341

]

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 17, 2024
UDIN: 24511341BKBHDQ7186
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial statements under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act 2013 (Referred to in paragraph 7(f)
under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

1.

We have audited the internal financial controls over financials reporting of ASK Automobiles
Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS
financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2024.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2.

The management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (the “ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention.and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to the financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements were established and maintained and whether such controls operated effectively in
all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to the financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
of internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of such internal financial controls assessing the risk that a material weakness exists and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to the financial

statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial controls over Financial Reporting

6.

A Company’s internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A Company's internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements include those policies
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and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (i) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on
the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial controls over Financial Reporting

7.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to the financial
statements including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8.

For

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2024, based on the criteria for internal financial control over financial reporting established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAIL

B. B. & Associates

Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration number:=-023670N
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Balwan Bansal J ~
Partner //\‘é':-
Membership No. 511341 N&; oed %

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 17, 2024
UDIN: 24511341BKBHDQ7186
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ASK Automobiles Private Limited

Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024

CIN: U34300DL.2021PTC381966

(Al amounis are in INR Lakhs, unless othervise stared)

Notes As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 25,892.93 919.15
Capital work-in-progress 3 7,494.33 11.482.60
Right-of-use assets 4A 9,167.05 7,706.79
Other intangible assets 4B 56.42 2.05
Financial assets
(i) Other financial assets 5 462.20 202.80
Other non-current assets o 478.28 1,035.86
43,551.21 21,349.25
Current assets
Inventories 7 1,236.99 46.32
Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 8 3,764.99 0.13
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 9 5.48 111.79
(iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above 10 111 -
(iv) Other financial assets 5 13.20 73.78
Current tax assets (net) 11 51.60 2.06
Deferred tax Assets (net) 12 350.32 -
Other current assets 6 2.734.76 1,224.77
8,158.45 1,458.85
Total assets 51,709.66 22,808.10
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 13 75.00 75.00
Other equity 14 (1,933.40) 1469.19)
Total equity (1,858.40) (394.19)
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 15 41,347.60 19,794.52
(ii) Lease liabilities 16 125.87 181.31
(iii) Other financial liabilities 17 1,532.23 375.45
Provisions 18 36.08 3.00
43,041.78 20,354.28
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(1) Borrowings 15 5,455.21 871.93
(ii) Lease liabilities 16 66.13 63.11
(iii) Trade payables 19
(a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 22291 14.20
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than (iii)(a) above 3,106.35 135.51
(iv) Other financial liabilities 17 1,166.21 1,692.51
Provisions 18 312 035
Other current liabilities 20 506.35 70.40
10,526.28 2,848.01
Total liabilities 53,568.06 23,202.29
Total equity and liabilities 51,709.66 22,808.10
The accompanying notes are an intepral part of the financial statements.
This is the balance sheet referred to in our report of even date
For B.B. & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants ASK Automobiles Private Limited

Firm's Registration No.: 023670N

hwabt™S 2 U

Aman Rathee Rajesh Kataria Kapil‘ﬁtar/'

Balwan Bansal

Partner Director Director CFO

Membership No.: 511341 DIN: 00041130 DIN: 08528643

Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram
Date: 17 May 2024 Date: 17 May 2024 Date: 17 May 2024 Date: 17 May 2024




ASK Automobiles Private Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2024

CIN: U34300DL2021PTC381966
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Income

Revenue from operations 21 14,369.29 4.36
Other income 22 24.79 35.18
Total income 14.394.08 39.54
Expenses

Cost of material consumed 23 9.066.98 31.63
Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress 24 (720.09) (25.95)
Employee benefits expense 25 1,327.04 26.28
Finance costs 26 2,323.45 139.69
Depreciation and amortization expense 27 1,217.14 93.06
Other expenses 28 2.,996.17 213.77
Total expenses 16.210.69 478.48
Loss before tax (1.816.61) (438.94)
Tax expenses

Current tax 29 - -
Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods 29 1.92 -
Deferred tax 29 (351.33) -
Total tax expenses (349.41) =
Loss after tax for the year 11.467.20) 438.94)
Other comprehensive income:

(i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent years: -
Remeasurement of post employment benefit obligations 29 4.00 -
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent (1.01)

years :

Other comprehensive (lossyincome for the year, net of tax 2.99 -
Total comprehensive loss for the year (1.464.21) (438.94)
Earnings per equity share (INR)

Basic and Diluted 30 (195.63) (58.53)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date

For B.B. & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 023670N

/(MJ(J«\ Z(c-

Balwan Bansal
Partner
Membership No.: 511341

Place: Gurugram
Date: 17 May 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
ASK Automobiles Private Limited

JXMM"?‘W’ ’ *;f/

Aman Rathee Rajesh Kataria
Director Director

DIN: 00041130 DIN: 08528643
Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram

Date: 17 May 2024 Date: 17 May 2024
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Kapil Khattar
CFO

Place: Gurugram
Date: 17 May 2024



ASK Automobiles Private Limited

Statement of cash flows for the vear ended 31 March 2024
CIN: U34300DL2021PTC381966

(AN amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless othervise stated)

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

A. Cash flow from operating activities

Loss before tax (1,816.61) (438.94)
Adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1,083.29 50.43
Depreciation/Amortization of right of use assets 13145 4228
Amortization of intangible assets 240 0.35
Net unrealised loss on foreign currency transaction - 237
Interest income (20.49) (4.64)
Amount written off 0.06 -
Interest income on security deposit shown at fair value (1.57) 0.67)
Interest expenses on financial liabilitics measured at amortised cost 2,287.27 124.30
Interest on lease liability 16.05 7.46
Operating profit/(loss) before working capital changes 1,681.85 (217.06)
Movements in working capital :
Increase in trade receivables (3,764.86) (0.13)
Increase in inventories (1,190.67) (46.32)
Increase in trade payables 3.179.55 142.09
(Increase)/Decrease in other financial assets 70.57 (49.02)
Increase in other assets (1,519.09) (1,231.50)
Increase in other financial liabilities 133.61 1243
Increase in provisions 39.85 335
Increase in other liabilities 7445 49.71
Cash used in operations (1,294.74) (1,336.45)
Direct taxes paid (net of refunds) (51.46) (2.06)
Net cash used in operating activities (A) (1,346.20) (1,338.51)
B. Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (including capital work in progress) (22,597.46) (10,737.97)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 0.39 -
Investment in fixed deposits (253.16) (151.73)
Interest received 4.66 3.98
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (22,845.57) (10,885.72)
C. Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from long term borrowings (net) 27,321.93 13,055.17
Repayment of long term borrowings (1,185.57) -
Principal payment of finance lease liability (Refer Note 38) (66.12) (257.31)
Interest payment of finance lease liability (Refer Note 38) (16.05) (7.46)
Interest paid on borrowinys (1,968.73) (489.97)
Net cash generated from financing activities ©) 24,085.46 12,300.43
Net Increase/(Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (106.31) 76.20
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 111.79 35.59
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 548 111.79

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per the statement of cash flows:
Cash and cash equivalents as per above comprises of the following :

As at 31 March 2024

As at 31 March 2023

- Cash on hand 1.07 1.07
- Balance in current accounts 441 110.72
Balance as per Stat t of Cash Flows 5.48 111.79

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

This is the Statement of Cash Flows referred to in our report of even date

For B.B. & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 023670N

bk

Balwan Bansal
Partner
Membership No.: 511341

Director

Place: Gurugram

Date: 17 May 2024 Date: 17 May 2024
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Aman Rathee
DIN: 00041130

Place: Gurugram

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
ASK Automobiles Private Limited

Rajesh Kataria
Director
DIN: 08528643
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Kapil Khattar
CFO

Place: Gurugram
Date: 17 May 2024



ASK Automobiles Private Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2024

CIN: U34300DL2021PTC381966
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

A. Equity Share Capital*
As at 31 March 2024

Balance as at 1 April 2023 (equity share of INR 10 each)

Changes in equity share capital

Balance as at 31 March 2024
(equity share of INR 10 each)

75.00

75.00

As at 31 March 2023

Balance as at 1 April 2022 (equity share of INR 10 each)

Changes in equity share capital

Balance as at 31 March 2023
(equity share of INR 10 each)

75.00 - 75.00
*Refer note 13 for details.
B. Other Equity #

As at 31 March 2024

Reserves and Surplus
Description Retained earnings Total other equity
As at 1 April 2023 (469.19) (469.19)
Loss for the year (1,467.20) (1,467.20)
Other comprehensive income 2.99 2.99
Total comprehensive loss for the year (1,464.21) (1,464.21)
As at 31 March 2024 (1,933.40) (1,933.40)
As at 31 March 2023

Reserves and Surplus
Description Retained earnings Total other equity
As at 1 April 2022 (30.25) (30.25)
Loss for the year (438.94) (438.94)
Total comprehensive loss for the year (438.94) (438.94)
As at 31 March 2023 (469.19) (469.19)

# Refer note 14 for details.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

This is the Statement of Changes in Equity referred to in our report of even date

For B.B. & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 023670N

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
ASK Automobiles Private Limited

ey Koo d272- - MU
Balwan Bansal Aman Rathee Rajesh Kataria Kapil Kha{
Partner Director Director CFO

Membership No.: 511341

Place: Gurugram
Date: 17 May 2024

DIN: 00041130

Place: Gurugram
Date: 17 May 2024

Place: Gurugram
Date: 17 May 2024

DIN: 08528643

Place: Gurugram
Date: 17 May 2024




ASK Automobiles Private Limited

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
CIN: U34300DL2021PTC381966

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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Corporate Information

ASK Automobiles Private Limited (‘the Company’) is a company domiciled in India, with its
registered office situated at Flat No. 104, 929/1, Naiwala, Faiz Road, Karol Bagh, New Delhi-
110005, India. The Company was incorporated under the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 in
India on 07 June 2021. The company is a wholly owned subsidiary of ASK Automotive Limited
(Formerly known as ASK Automotive Private Limited) (The Holding Company). The Company has
set up manufacturing plants in Seethappanahallli Village, District Kolar, Karnataka and in
Bhiwadi, District Alwar, Rajasthan. A new manufacturing plant is being set up at Mindahalli,
Village, District Kolar, Karnataka primarily for manufacture of auto components.

Basis of preparation
a. Statement of compliance with Ind AS

These financial statements (‘financial statements’) of the Company have been prepared in
accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Ind AS’) as
notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA”) under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013
(‘Act’) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2015, as
amended and other relevant provisions of the Act. The Company has uniformly applied the
accounting policies during the periods presented.

The financial statements for the financial year ended 31 March 2024 were authorized and approved
for issue by the Board of Directors on 17 May 2024.

b. Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian rupees (‘INR’), which is also the Company’s
functional currency. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest Lakhs upto two place of
decimal, unless otherwise indicated.

¢. Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in India. The financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis.

d. Going concern assumption

The Company’s Ind AS financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis
notwithstanding the fact that it has incurred a loss after tax of INR (1,467.20) Lakhs for the year
ended 31 March 2024 and has a net worth of INR (1858.40) Lakhs as at the balance sheet date.
Further, the Company’s current liabilities and borrowings exceeded its current assets by INR
2,367.85 Lakhs as at that date. The appropriateness of the going concern assumption on which the
Ind AS financial statements are prepared depends on the ability of the Company to generate
sufficient cash flows from its operations based on expected future growth and letter of support
provided by ASK Automotive Limited (Formerly known as ASK Automotive Private Limited)

(The Holding Company).

These Ind AS  financial  statements, therefore =~ do  not include  any
adjustments relating to recoverability and classification of asset amounts and classification of
liabilities that may be necessary if the company was unable to continue as going concern.
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ASK Automobiles Private Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (continued)
CIN: U34300DL2021PTC381966

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

e. Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles require management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses and the disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date of the financial statements. Actual
results could differ from those estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Any revision to accounting estimates are recognized prospectively in current and
future periods. Information about judgments made in applying accounting policies that have the
most significant effects on the amounts recognized in the financial statements is included in the

following notes:

Significant estimates

Useful lives of depreciable/amortizable assets — Management reviews its estimate of the
useful lives of depreciable/amortizable assets at each reporting date, based on the expected
utility of the assets. Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technical and economic
obsolescence that may change the utility of assets.

Defined benefit obligation (DBO) — Management’s estimate of the DBO is based on
underlying assumptions such as standard rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate and
anticipation of future salary increases. Variation in these assumptions may significantly impact
the DBO amount and the annual defined benefit expenses.

Recognition of deferred tax assets — The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized
is based on an assessment of the probability of the future taxable income against which the
deferred tax assets can be utilized.

Significant judgments

Contingent liabilities — At each balance sheet date, on the basis of the management judgment,
changes in facts and legal aspects, the Company assesses the requirement of disclosure against the
outstanding contingent liabilities. However, the actual future outcome may be different from this

judgement.

Impairment of financial assets — At each balance sheet date, based on historical default rates
observed over expected life, the management assesses the expected credit loss on outstanding
financial assets.

Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets — The evaluation of applicability of indicators
of impairment of assets requires assessment of several external and internal factors which could
result in deterioration of recoverable amount of the assets.

Classification of leases — The Company enters into leasing arrangements for a premise. The
assessment (including measurement) of the lease is based on several factors, including, but not
limited to, transfer of ownership of leased asset at end of lease term, lessee’s option to
extend/terminate etc. After the commencement date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there
is a significant event or change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to
exercise or not to exercise the option to extend or to terminate.




ASK Automobiles Private Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (continued)

CIN: U34300DL2021PTC381966
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

f. Measurement of fair values

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require measurement of fair
values, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. The Company has an established
control framework with respect to measurement of fair values. This includes treasury division
which is responsible for overseeing all significant fair value measurements, including Level 3 fair
values, and report directly to chief financial officer.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used
in the valuation techniques as follows.

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for financial instruments.
Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined
using valuation techniques which maximize the use of observable market data rely as little as

possible on entity specific estimates.
Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the

instrument is included in level 3.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or liability, the Company uses observable market data
as far as possible. The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at
the end of the reporting period during which the changes have occurred.

2A. Material accounting policies
(a) Current-non-current classification

All assets and liabilities are classified into current and non-current.

Assets

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

a) it is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the normal operating
cycle;

b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

¢) itis expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date; or

d) it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets. All other assets are
classified as non-current.

Liabilities

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

a) it is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle;

b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

¢) itis due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or

d) the company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least 12 months after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the
counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its

classification.

Current liabilities include current portion of non-current financial liabilities. All other liabilities
are classified as non-current.




ASK Automobiles Private Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (continued)

CIN: U34300DL2021PTC381966
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Operating cycle
Operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation

in cash or cash equivalents. The Company has determined its operating cycle as 12 months for
the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current.

(b) Foreign currency transactions

i. Initial recognition

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency of the Company at
the exchange rates at the date of the transaction.

ii., Measurement at reporting date

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the
functional currency at the exchange rate at the reporting date. Non- monetary assets and liabilities
that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are translated at the exchange
rate at the date of the transaction. Exchange differences on restatement/ settlement of all
monetary items are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

(¢) Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a

financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

i. Recognition and initial measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument and are measured initially at fair value adjusted for
transaction costs, except for those carried at fair value through Profit and Loss which are

measured initially at fair value.

ii. Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at

amortized cost; or
fair value through profit or loss CFVTPL’)

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the
period the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions:

the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect

contractual cash flows; and

. the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortized cost as described above are measured
at FVTPL.




ASK Automobiles Private Limited

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (continued)
CIN: U34300DL2021PTC381966

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

iii.

iv.

(d)

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial liability
is classified as at FEVTPL ifit is classified as held for trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated
as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net
gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognized in statement of profit or loss.
Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method. The Company does not have any fixed liabilities under the category of FVTPL.

Derecognition
Financial assets

The Company de-recognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a
transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset
are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks
and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset.

Investments in equity instruments of joint venture and subsidiary company are accounted for at
cost in accordance with Ind AS 27 Separate Financial Statements.

Financial liabilities

The Company de-recognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged
or cancelled, or expire. The Company also de-recognises a financial liability when its terms are
modified and the cash flows under the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a
new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognized at fair value. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability
with modified terms is recognized in statement of profit and loss.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance
sheet when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the
amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency
or bankruptcy of the group or the counterparty.

Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are initially measured at cost of acquisition or construction
which includes capitalized borrowing cost. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price, including import duties and other non-refundable purchase taxes or
levies, any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended
use and estimated cost of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is
located. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. After
initial recognition, items of property, plant and equipment are carried at its cost less any
accumulated depreciation and / or accumulated impairment loss, if any.

@OB’L \\
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ASK Automobiles Private Limited

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (continued)
CIN: U34300DL2021PTC381966

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of
materials and direct labor, any other costs directly attributable / allocable to bring the item to

working condition for its intended use.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then
they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Gains or losses arising on sale/disposal of items of property, plant and equipment are recognized

in statement of profit and loss.

Capital work-in-progress comprises the cost of fixed assets that are not ready for their intended

use at the reporting date.

ii. Subseguent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits

associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company.

iii. Depreciation

Depreciation on items of property, plant and equipment is provided on the straight-line method
based on the estimated useful life of each asset as determined by the management. Depreciation
is charged over the number of shift a plant or equipment is used in the business in accordance
with schedule II of the Companies Act. Depreciation for assets purchased during the year is
proportionately charged i.e. from the date on which asset is ready for use. Depreciation for assets
sold during the year is proportionately charged i.e. up to the date on which asset is disposed off.

The useful lives have been determined based on internal evaluation done by management and are
in line with the estimated useful lives, to the extent prescribed by the Schedule II of the

Companies Act.

Life in Years

Buildings 30
Plant and machinery 15t020
Electrical installations 10
Furniture and fixtures 10
Office equipments 5
Vehicles 8

Dies and Moulds 7 to 10
Computers 3

Based on internal valuation done by the management, Hangers and trollies are depreciated at year

end based on the physical availability of respective assets.

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and

adjusted if appropriate.

Modification or extension to an existing asset, which is of capital nature, and which becomes an

integral part thereof is depreciated prospectively over the remaining useful life of that asset.




ASK Automobiles Private Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (continued)

CIN: U34300DL2021PTC381966
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(e¢) Intangible Assets

i. Recognition and initial measurement

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Company are measured initially at cost. After initial
recognition, an intangible asset is carried at its cost less any accumulated amortization and any
accumulated impairment loss.

ii. Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditures are included in the assets carrying amount or recognized as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
expenditure will flow to the Company and cost can be measured reliably.

iii. Amortisation
Computer software is being amortised over a period of six years on a straight line basis.

() Inventories

Inventories which comprise of raw material, work in progress, finished goods and stores and
spares are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of inventories comprises all
cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition.

The basis of determining costs for various categories of inventories are as follows: -

Raw materials, components, stores and spares, - Weighted Average Method
Packing, Loose Tools, gauges and instruments

Work-in-progress and finished goods - Material cost plus appropriate proportion of
labour, manufacturing overheads.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

The net realisable value of work-in-progress is determined with reference to the selling prices of
related finished goods. Raw materials held for use in production of finished goods are not written
down below cost, except in cases where material prices have declined, and it is estimated that the
cost of the finished goods will exceed its net realisable value. The comparison of cost and net
realizable value is made on an item-by-item basis.

(g) Impairment

Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognizes loss allowances using the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for
the financial assets which are not fair valued through profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade
receivables with no significant financing component is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECL. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount
equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from
initial recognition, in which case those financial assets are measured at lifetime ECL. The
changes (mcremental or reversal) in loss allowance computed using ECL model, are




ASK Automobiles Private Limited

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (continued)
CIN: U34300DL2021PTC381966

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company’s non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine if there
is indication of any impairment. If any indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. Assets that do not generate independent cash flows are grouped together into cash
generating units (CGU). An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of
an asset or its cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is

determined:

I in case of an individual asset, at the higher of the net selling price and the value in
use; and

ii. in case of a cash generating unit (a group of assets that generates identified,

independent cash flows), at the higher of the cash generating unit’s net selling price

and the value in use.
(The amount of value in use is determined as the present value of estimated future cash flows
from the continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. For this
purpose, the discount rate (pre-tax) is determined based on the weighted average cost of
capital of the respective company suitably adjusted for risks specified to the estimated cash
flows of the asset). For this purpose, a cash generating unit is ascertained as the smallest
identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the
cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets.

Impairment losses are recognised in statement of profit and loss. An impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

(h) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables represent liabilities for goods or services provided to the Company prior
to the end of financial year which are unpaid.

(i) Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest rate method. Borrowings are de-recognised from the
balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished or
transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred
or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.




ASK Automobiles Private Limited

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (continued)
CIN: U34300DL2021PTC381966

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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Employee benefits
Defined Contribution Plans:

The Company makes payments to defined contribution plans such as provident fund and
employees’ state insurance. The Company has no further payment obligations once the
contributions have been paid. The contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans
and the contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future
payments is available.

Short-term employee benefits:

Employee benefits payable within twelve months of receiving employee services are classified as
short-term employee benefits. These benefits include salaries and wages, bonus, etc. The
undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits to be paid in exchange for employee
services is recognised as an expense in statement of profit and loss as the related service is rendered
by employees.

Defined Benefit Plans:

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is
the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair
value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the
projected unit credit method.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the balance of the defined benefit
obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in
the statement of profit and loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive
income. They are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the
balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or
curtailments are recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.

Other long-term employee benefits:

Other long-term employee benefits are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss
as and when they accrue. The Company determines the liability using the Projected Unit Credit
Method, with actuarial valuations carried out as at the balance sheet date. Actuarial gains and
losses in respect of such benefits are charged to the statement of profit and loss.

Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present obligation that
can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation. Provisions are recognised at the best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date.




ASK Automobiles Private Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (continued)

CIN: U34300DL2021PTC381966
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

()  Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being
made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking
into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on
behalf of the government.

However, / Goods and Services Tax (GST) is not received by the Company on its own account.
Rather, it is tax collected on value added to the commodity or supplies made by the seller on
behalf of the government. Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue.

Sale of goods
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.

Further, revenue from sale of goods is recognized based on a 5-Step Methodology which is as
follows:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligation in contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract
Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for
volume discounts, service level credits, performance bonuses, price concessions, staggered
discount on early payments and incentives, if any, as specified in the contract with the customer.
Revenue also excludes taxes collected from customers.

Sale of services

The Company recognizes revenue from sales of services over time because the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Company. Revenue from
services provided is recognised upon rendering of the services, in accordance with the agreed
terms with the customers where ultimate collection of the revenue is reasonably expected.

Other operating revenue

All export benefits under various policies of Government of India are recognised on accrual basis
when no significant uncertainties as to the amount of consideration that would be derived and as

to its ultimate collection exist.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on accrual basis using the effective interest method.




ASK Automobiles Private Limited

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (continued)
CIN: U34300DL2021PTC381966

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(m) Government grants

Government grants related to property, plant and equipment are included in the non-current
liabilities as deferred government grant and are credited to Profit and loss on the basis of
fulfillment of export obligation and presented within other income in accordance with the primary
conditions associated with purchase of assets and related grants.

Government grants not related to assets are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss when
the rights to receive is established and the realization is reasonably certain.

(n) Leases

A lease is defined as ‘a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right to use an asset (the
underlying asset) for a period of time in exchange for consideration’.

Classification of leases

The Company enters into leasing arrangements for various assets. The assessment of the lease is
based on several factors, including, but not limited to, transfer of ownership of leased asset at end
of lease term, lessee’s option to extend/purchase etc.

Recognition and initial measurement

At lease commencement date, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability
on the balance sheet. The right-of-use asset is measured at cost, which is made up of the initial
measurement of the lease liability, any initial direct costs incurred by the Company, an estimate
of any costs to dismantle and remove the asset at the end of the lease (if any), and any lease
payments made in advance of the lease commencement date (net of any incentives received).

Subsequent measurement

The Company depreciates the right-of-use assets on a straight-line basis from the lease
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end
of the lease term. The Company also assesses the right-of-use asset for impairment when such
indicators exist. The estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows:

e Leasehold Building: 3 -5 years

e Leasehold land: 10 - 99 years

At lease commencement date, the Company measures the lease liability at the present value of
the lease payments unpaid at that date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease if
that rate is readily available or the Company’s incremental borrowing rate. Lease payments
included in the measurement of the lease liability are made up of fixed payments (including in
substance fixed payments) and variable payments based on an index or rate. Subsequent to initial
measurement, the liability will be reduced for payments made and increased for interest. It is re-
measured to reflect any reassessment or modification, or if there are changes in in-substance fixed
payments. When the lease liability is re-measured, the corresponding adjustment is reflected in
the right-of-use asset.

The Company has elected to account for short-term leases using the practical expedients. Instead
of recognising a right-of-use asset and lease liability, the payments in relation to these are
recognised as an expense in statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease




ASK Automobiles Private Limited

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (continued)
CIN: U34300DL2021PTC381966

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(0) Income-tax

Tax expense recognised in statement of profit and loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and
current tax not recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax is determined as the tax payable in respect of taxable income for the year and is
computed in accordance with relevant tax regulations. Current income tax relating to items
recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity).

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between carrying amount of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and corresponding amount used for taxation
purposes. Deferred tax assets on unrealised tax loss are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that the underlying tax loss will be utilised against future taxable income. This is assessed based
on the Company’s forecast of future operating results, adjusted for significant non-taxable
income and expenses and specific limits on the use of any unused tax loss. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax relating to items
recognised outside statement of profit and loss is recognised outside statement of profit or loss
(either in other comprehensive income or in equity).

Unused tax credit (Minimum alternate tax (‘MAT’) credit entitlement) is recognized as an asset
only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal
income tax during the specified period. In the year in which such credit becomes eligible to be
recognized as an asset, the said asset is created by way of a credit to the statement of profit and
loss and shown as unused tax credit. The Company reviews the same at each balance sheet date
and writes down the carrying amount of unused tax credit to the extent it is not reasonably certain
that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period.

(p) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.
Diluted earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of equity shares and
dilutive potential equity shares outstanding during the year end, except where the results would
be anti-dilutive.

(q) Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability exists when there is a possible but not probable obligation, or a present
obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources, or a present obligation
whose amount cannot be estimated reliably. Contingent liabilities do not warrant provisions, but
are disclosed. Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements.
However, contingent assets are assessed continually and if it is virtually certain that an inflow of
economic benefits will arise, the asset and related income are recognised in the period in which

the change occurs.
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ASK Automobiles Private Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (continued)

CIN: U34300DL2021PTC381966
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(r) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of cash flow statement comprise balance with banks
and in hand and demand deposits.

(s) Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition, construction or erection of qualifying assets
are capitalised. Capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the qualifying assets for their intended use are complete.

Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss in the year
in which they are incurred.

(t) Derivative financial instruments

The Company holds derivative financial instruments contracts to mitigate the risk of changes in
exchange rates on foreign currency exposures. The counterparty for these contracts is generally
a bank. Apart from this derivatives are used as short term investment instruments as a treasury

management function.

Derivatives are recognized initially at fair value and attributable transaction costs are recognized
in net profit in the statement of profit and loss. Subsequent to initial recognition, the derivatives
are measured at fair value through statement of profit and loss and the resulting exchange gains
or losses are included in other income.

(u) Amendment to Accounting Standards (Ind AS) issued but not yet effective
Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing
standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time.

During the year ended 31 March, 2024 MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments
to the existing standards applicable to the Company.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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ASK Automobiles Private Limited

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
CIN: U34300DL2021PTC381966

All amonnis are in INR Lakhs_nnless viherwise stated)

5 Other financial assets

Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated

Security deposits
Other financial asscts

As at 31 March 2024

As at 31 March 2023

202.80

Current Non-current Current Non-current
Deposits wilh original maturity of more than 12 months (refer notc 10) 3.66 404.44 -
830 57.76 7348
1.24 - 0.30
13.20 462.20 73.78

6 Other assets

As at 51 March 2024

As at 31 March 2023

. Current Non-current Current Non-current
Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated
Advances to supplicrs 574 - 1746 -
Prepaid expenses 26.52 22.40 3.63 1330
Capital advances - 455.88 - 1.022.56
Advance to employees 0.08 - - -
Balances with government authorities 2.430.84 1.203.68 -
GST Recoverable on goods in transit 66.75 - - -
Other asscts 204.83 - - -
Totalother assets _ 273476 478.28 1.224.77 1.035.86
7 Inventories As at As at
31 March 2024 3t March 2023
Valued at lower of cost or net realisable value
Raw matcrials* 188.97 0.28
Work-in-progress 377.35 21.37
Finished goods** 368.69 4.58
Packing material 95.10 4.67
Stores and spares including loose tools 206.88 15.42
Totalinventorics 1.236.99 46.32
*Includes raw material in transit 678 -
**Includes sale of goods in transit 107.37 -
8 Trade receivables - = As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Unsecured
Reccivable from related parties (refer note 35) 221.54 -
Receivable from others
Trade ivabl idered good - U d 3.543.45 0.13
Total trade receivables 3,764.99 0.13
8.1 Trade receivables ageing schedule
As at March 31, 2024
Particulars Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment#
Unbilled Not Due Less than 6 months 6 months -1 year 1-2 vears 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables — 20.31 3.414.95 329.73 - - - - 3,764.99
considered food
Total 20,31 3.414.95 3298.73 - - - 3.764.99
1. All the Trade 1 bles of the pany has a resy due date of payment associaled with them | therefore separate information is nof required to he disclosed.
8.2 Trade receivables ageing schedule
As at March 31, 2023 o
Particulars Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment#
Unbilled Not Due Less than 6 months 6 months -1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
(iy Undisputed Tradc receivables — - AR - 0.13
considered rood
Total - - - uil = 0.13
#1. Al the Trade 1 bles of the company has a resy due date of payment associated with them . therefore separate information is not requived fo be disclosed.
Notes:
1. Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 to 60 days.
2. Refer note 34(BWD)a) for details of Company's credit risk policy and exposure.
As at As at

9 Cash and cash cquivalents

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Balance with banks:

- In current accounts 4.41 10.72
Cash on hand 107 1.07
_ 548 111.79




ASK Automabiles Private Limited

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
CIN: U34300DL2021 PTC381966

Al aimonnis are i INR Lakhs. _1_1;_1/u.\‘.\' otherwise staied)

1 Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

As at

31 March 2024

Asat
31 March 2023

Balance with banks:*
- Deposits with orig

al maturity of more than threc months but less than 12 months L1l -
- Deposils with original maturity of mote than 12 months 40810 151.73
409.21 151.73
Amount disclosed as "Other financial assets” (rcfer note 3) 408.10) (131.73)
Total banlk balances other than cash and cash eijuivalents 1.1t B =.

e A s —

* Margin Money with bank (for guaranices to government authorities) amounting to INR 40921 Lakhs (31 March 2023 INR 151.73 Lakhs). The above amount includes interest accrued on fixed deposits amounting

to INR 17.12 Lakhs (31 March 2023: INR 0.66 Lakhs).

11 Current tax assets (net) Asat Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Advance income tax 51.60 2.06
Total current tax assets inet) 51.60 2.06
Asat Asat

12 Deferred tax Assets (net)

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Amount Attributable to:

Provision for gratuity
Provision for bonus
Busingss loss

12.1 Movement in deferred tax assets

Property. plant and equipment and intangible assets (417.27) -
Provision for compensated absences 383 -
2.89 -
5.08 -
755.79 -
Total Deferred tax Assets (net) 350.32 -
Asat Statement of Other As at

As at 31 March 2024
Particulars

31 March 2024 profit and

loss for

the year ended 31

comprehensive 31 March 2023
income for the

March 2024 year ended 31
March 2024

Non-current assets
Property. plant and equipment and intangible assets (417.27 (417.27y -
Provisions
Provision for compensated abscnces 3.83 3.83 - -
Provision for gratuity 289 3.90 (1.01y -
Provision for bonus 5.08 5.08 - -
Other liabilities
Business loss . 755.7% 755.79 = -
Total 350.32 351.33 1101} -
Particulars For the year For the year

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Deferred tax Credit to statement of profit and loss 351.33 -
Deferred tax (Credity/Charted in Other Comjrrel Income R on -
Total 350.32 -

13 Equitv share capital

As at 31 March 2024

As at 31 March 2023

Nos Amount Nos Amount
(i) Authorised share capital
Equity shares of face value INR 10 cach 1,000,000 100.00 1.000,000 100.00
1.060.000 160.00 1.000.000 100.00
(i) Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares
Equity shares of face value INR 10 cach 750.000 75.00 750.000 75.00
Total ¢ijuity share capital 750,000 75.08 750,000 75.00

(iii) ciliation of the shares ing at the b and at the end of the year
Equity
As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Nos Amount Nos Amount
Autherised share capital
At the beginning of the year 1006000 100.60 1.000.000 100.60
d during the year - = - =
As at the end of the year 1,000,000 160.00 1,000,000 100.00
Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital
At the beginning of the ycar 750,000 75.00 750,000 75.00
Share issued during the year - - “ -
750.000 75.00 750,000 75.00

Qutstanding at the end of the year




ASK Automobiles Private Limited
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

CIN:

34300DL2021PTC381966

(A1 cmonnts are in INR Lakhs_tmless otherwise stated)

(iv) Terms/rights attached to equity es
The Company has only one class of cquity shares having lace value of INR 10 per share. All the existing equity shares rank pari passu in all respecls including but not limited to entitlement for dividend, bonus issue
and right issuc_In the event of liquidation. the cquity sharcholders are cligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after seutfing of all labilitics. in proportion to their sharcholding
(v)  Details of shareholders holding more than 3% shares in the Company
Equity shares of face value INR 18 each As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Nos % of holding Nos % of holding
ASK Automotive Limited (Formerly fnown as ASK Auwtomotive Private Limited (atong with Nominee) 750.000 100% 750000 160%
730,000 100% 750,000 100%
Note: Mr. Kuldip Singh Rathce {Director of the Company} is holding 1 equity share as nomince shareholder of ASK Automotive Limited (Formerh: known as ASK Amiomotive Private Limited ).
(viy _Shares in respect of cach class in the company held by its holding company
Equity shares of face value INR 10 cach As at 31 March 2024 As ar 31 March 2023
Nos Amount Nos Amount
_ASK Automotive Limited (Formerly known as ASK Automotive Private Limifed {along with Nominee) 750,000 75.00 750,000 75.00
750,000 75.00 750,000 7500
Note; Mr. Kuldip Singh Rathee (Director of the Company) is holding | equity share as nomince shareholder of ASK Automotive Limited (Formery known as ASK Automotive Private Limited).
(vii) No shares have been issucd pursuant to contract without payment being reccived in cash, allotted as fully paid-up shares by way of bonus shares nor have any brought back of shares has happened since incorporation
of Company.
(viii) Equity Sharcholding of Promoters at the end of the year
Shares held by promoters at the end of the year No. of Shares % of total shaves % Change during  No. of Shares Yoof total % Change during
Promoter’s name the year shares the year
ASK Automotive Limited (Formerly known as ASK Automotive 750,000 100.00% - 750.000 100.00% -
Private Limired) (along with Nominec)
750,000 100.00% - 750,000 100.00% -
Note: Mr. Kuldip Singh Rathce (Director of the Company) is holding 1 equity sharc as nominee shareholder of ASK Automotive Limited (Formerly knovwn as ASK Automotive Private Limited),
14 Other equity As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Retained carnings
Balance at the beginning of the year (469.19) (30.25)
Add: Loss for the year (1.467.20) (438.94)
Add: Other comprehensive income 299 -
Total other eq!uitv* {1,933.40¢ — i469.19)
* The Company has obtained a letter of continued financial support [rom its Holding Company to meets its short term financial requirements. Further the Company will benefit significamtly for its future operations
from the established market position of its Holding Company once it starts full production.
14.1 Nature and purpese of ather equity
- Retained carnings: This represents the net loss after all distributions and transfrs to other reserves.
15 Borrowings As at Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Secured borrowings
Term loan
From banks (note (i} to (iii)) 26.862.00 15.450.55
Waorking capital loans (note (iv)) 11.41 -
Unsecured borrowings
From Holding Company {note (v}) 19,929.40 5.21590
Totat bor s 46,802.81 20,666.45
Breakup uf borrowings:
Non-current 41.347.60 19.794.52
Current 545521 871.93
Total borrowinis 46,802.81 20.666.45
Notes related to borrowings:
1. Borrowings taken from banks have been utilised for the purpose for which they were sanctioned and availed.
2. Interest rates, repayment and other terms of the borrowings:
Term loans
Particulars Asat As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
(i} Kotak Mahindra Bank Ltd.: Term loan INR 17.400 Lakhs sanctioned and availed for the capex related (o plant at Alwar, Rajasthan 16.571.43 12.850.55

and is sccured by fitst and exclusive hypothecation charge on all existing and future current asscts and moveable fixed assets of the
Company. The said loan is also securcd by first and exclusive charge on immoveable propertics being land and building situated at
Plot No- SP4-315, Industrial Arca, Karoli. This loan is alse sccured by corp 2 ¢ of ASK Aut tive Limited (Formerly
Fnown as ASK Automotive Private Limited ). The loan is having tenure of maximum 7 years with moratotium of maximum 6 months
from the date of commercial operations (maximum moratorium allowed is 2 years from the date of first disbursement). Rate of
interest is repo rate + 1.80 p.a.
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(i) Kotak Mahindra Bank Ltd.: Term loan INR 4.000 Lakhs sanctioned and availed for the capex related to plant at Bangalors. 3.213.00 2.600.00
Karnataka and is sceured by first and exclusive hypothecation charge on moveable fixed assels financed out of this term loan at
Bangalore. Karnataka Plant. This loan s also sccured by corporate guatanice of ASK Automotive Limited (Formerly known as ASK
Automotive Privatc Limited). The loan is having tenure of maximum 66 months including moratorinm of maximum & months from
the date of first disbursement) and will be repaid on quarterly installment basis by Scptember 2028, Rate of interest is 3 Month
MCLR.
(iii) Kotak Mahindra Bank Ltd.: Term loan INR 8.700 Lakhs sanctioned and availed for the capex related to plant at Alwar. Rajasthan and 707757 -
is secured by first and exclusive hypothecation charge on all existing and future reccivables / current assels /moveable fixed asscis
(exclusive that of banglorc facility) of the borrower. First and exclusive charge on inmoveable propetiies being land and building
situated at Plot No- SP4<315. Industrial Area KAROLI (Auto Zone). Alwar of area 91624 sq. m Allocated by RIICO. belonging to the
Borrower. This loan is also secured by corporatc guarantee of ASK Automotive Limited (Formerly known as ASK Automotive
Private Limitcd). The loan is having tenure of maximum 66 montls including moratorium of maximum 6 months from the date of
first disbursement) and will be repaid on quarterly installment basis by September 2028. Rate of interest is 3 Month MCLR.
Total secured borrowings 26.862.00 15.450.55
(iv) Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited: Working capital facifity is secured by first and exclusive hypothecation charge on all existing and
future seceivables/ current asscls / moveable assets / moveable fixcd assets of the borrower. The said loan is also securcd by first and
exclusive charge on immovable property being land and building situated at Plot No. SP4-315. Industrial Area Karoli (Auto Zonc). 1141 -
Alwar.
Total Working capital loan from banks = 1.4 =
(v) The company has availed an unsccured loan from ASK Automotive Limited (Formerly known as ASK Automotive Privatc Limited), 19.929.40 3,21590
for purchase of fixed assets including land. construction of building. purchase of plant and machinery and for meeting working capital
requircments. for an amount not exceeding INR 10.000 Lakhs to be disbursed up to March 2024. The interest rate on the loan amount
is repo rate + 1.90% for loan disbursed during financial year 2021-22 _ repo rate + 2.30% for the loan to be disbursed during financial
year 2022-23 and repo rate + 3.30% for the loan to be disbursed during financial year 2023-24. The loan is repayable in sixty equal
monthly installments w.c.L. 01 April, 2024. Interest accrued up to March 2024 is pavable in 4 equal quarterly instalments starting from
07 July 2024. Interest accrued from 01 April 2024 is payable on 7th day after end of cach quarter. The Company has enhanced the
sanctioned Limit to INR 20.000 Lakhs and amend the terms as: (1) Remaining loan amount can be availed in onc or more wranches till
31st March 2026. (2) Interest rate from 01 April 2024 will be Repo Rate +2.00% p.a. applicable on all loan disburscd in various
phases. (3) The loan will be repayable in sixty equal monthly installments w.ef 01 April. 2026, (4) Interest accrued up to March 2026
was payablc in 4 equal quarterly instalments starting from 7 July 2026. Interest accrued from | April 2026 was payable on 7th day
after end of cach quarter.
Total unsecured borrowingys 19,929.40 5,215.90
16  Lease liabilities As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Current Non-current Current Non-current
Lease liability (Refer note 38) 66.13 12587 63.11 18131
T ase liabilities 66.13 12587 63.11 181,31
17  Other financial liabilities As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Current Non-current Current Non-current
Capital creditors*” 873.60 - 1,594.68 -
Interest accrued 146.57 1,532.23 85.40 375.45
Employee related payvable 14587 - 8.86 -
Security deposit reccived - 3.57 -
Others liabilities 0.17 B -
Total other financi ilities 1.166.21 1,332.23 1,692.51 37545
* This inchides INR 198.90 Lakhs (31 March 2023 INR 128.03 Lakhs) related to retention money.
# This also includes INR 1,18 Lakhs (31 March 2023: INR 198.95 lakhs) payable to related partics.
17.1 _Capital creditors As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer note 17.2) 204.44 301.63
Total outstandine dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterjirises 669.16 1.293.05
Total Capital creditors 873.60 1,594.68
17.2  Disclosures under Micro. Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 for Capital creditors
The micro enterpriscs and small enterprises have been identified by the Company from the available information. According to such identification. the disclosures in respect to Micro. Small and Medium Enterpriscs
Development (MSMED) Act. 2006 is as follows:
_Particulars As at 31 March 2024 s at 31 March 2023
()  Details of dues to micro and small enterpriscs as per MSMED Act. 2006 the principal amount and the intcrest due thercon remaining unpaid fo any
supplicr as at the end of each accounting year
- principal amount 204,44 301.63
- interest amount Nil Nil
(i)  The amount of interest paid by the buyer under MSMED Act. 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed Nil Nil
day during cach accounting year:
(i) The amount of interest duc and payable for the period (where the principal has been paid but intercst under the MSMED Act, 2006 not paid): Nil Nil
@v)  The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of cach accounting ycar: and Nil Nil
() The amount of further interest remaining duc and payable even in (he succeeding years, until such date when (he interest ducs as above are actually paid Nil Nil

teductibl under section 23

1o the small enterprise for the purpose of disall asa
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18 Provisions o Asat 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
. Current Non-current Current Non-current
Provision for gratuity (refer note 18.1) 0.05 16.77 0.27 2.38
Provision for compensated absences 3.07 1931 0.08 062
Total provisions ) 36.08 035 300

18.1 Defined benefit plan and long term employment benefit

A General description:
Gratuity {Defined henefit plan):
Grawwity liability is defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method made at the end of each financial year, The gratuity plan is governed by the

Payment of Gratwity Act. 1972. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets a gramity on departure at 13 days salary (last drawn salary) for cach completed year of service. The scheme is
unfunded. Actuarial gains or losscs are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Compensated absence (other long term employec benefits):
The employees of the Company are entitled to leave as per the leave policy of the Company. The Company trcats accumulated leave expected 1o be carried forward beyond twelve months. as long term employce
benefit for measurement purposes. Such long term compensated absences are provided for based on actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the year end. The expense related to compensated

absences are recognised in statement of profit and loss as employee benefits expense

ion of the Company’s defined benefit obligation (DBO)Y and plan assets, i.e. the gratuity plan, to the amounts presented in the statement of financial position for cach of the reporting

B A reconcili
periods is presented below:

As at Asat
o . 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Assets and liability (Balance sheet position)
Present value of obligation 16.82 2.65
Fair value of plan assets - -
lity 16.82 2.65
€ Expenses recognised during the vear
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
In income statement 18.22 2.65
In other prehensive income 4.00) -
“Total expenses recognised during the year 14.22 2.65
D Defined benefit obligation
The details of the Company’s defincd benefits obligations are as follows:
Changes in the present value of obligation
For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2023

Present value of obligation as at the beginning 2.65 -
Current service cost 18.02 0.59
Interest cxpense 0.20 -
Past service cost, including | (gains) on curtail - 2.06
Re-mcasurement or actuarial (gain) / loss arising from:
- change in demographic assumptions (1.84) -
- change in financial assumptions 0.50 -
- experience adjustments (2.65) -
Benefits jraid ~ (0.06) -
Present value of oblization as at the year end 16.82 2.65
E  Bifurcation of net liability .
Asat As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Current liability 0.05 0.27
Non-current liability 16.77 2.3%8
Net liability 16.82 2.65
F  Expenses recognised in the statement of pirofit and loss
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Current service cost 18.02 0.59
Past service cost. including losses/(gains) on curtailments - 2.06
Net interest cost on the net defined benefit liability 0.2 =
Expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss 18.22 2.65
G Other compirehensive income
For the year ended For the year ended
= 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Actuarial {gains) / losses
- change in demographic assumptions (1.84) -
- change in financial assumptions 0.30 -
- expierience variance (2.66) -

Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other comjirchensive income .00} -
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1 agsumptions used in (he valuation arc shown in the table below:

H  Financial assumptions: The princiy.

As at As at

31 March 2024 . 31 March 2023

Discount rate (per annun) 715% 7.40%
9.00% 9.00%

Salarv erowth rate {per annum)

1 Demographic assumptions =
As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Mortalily rate (% of TALM 2012-14) (PY: % of TALM 2012-14) 100.00% 100.00%
14.00% 12.00%

Withdrawal ratc (all ages) .

of independent actuatics. Discount factors are determined close 1o each year-cnd by reference to market vields of high quality corporatc bonds
urity approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Other assumptions are based on current actuarial

These assumptions were developed by with the
that arc denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid and that have terms to mat

benchmarks and management’s historical expericnee.

J itivity vsis: Signi actuarial ptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation arc discount rate. cxpected satary inerease and mortality. The sensitivity analysis below have been
determined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occurting at the end of the reporting year. whilc holding all other assumptions constant. The tesults of sensitivity analysis is given below:

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Defined benefit oblization (Base) 1682 2.63

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Decreasc Increase Decrease Increase

Discount rate (= / + 1%) 18.61 15.25 2.90 244
(% change compared to basc due to sensitivity) 10.70% <9.30% 9.30% -8.00%

Salary growth rate (-/ + 1%) 15.26 18.56 244 2.89
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity <9.30% 10.40% -8.00% 9.10%

Attrition rate (- / + 30% of attrition rate) 24.38 11,70 3.00 2.46
% chanye compared to basc du to sensitivity 45.00% -30.40% 15.10% -7.10%

The change in defined benefit obli dueto 1% i d in mortality rate. if all other assumptions remain constant is negligible.
The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of

one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

There is no change in the method of valuation for the prior petiod.

K The following arc expected maturity jrotile of defined benefit payments in future years: .
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Duration of defined benefit pay (valued on i basis)
Within the next 12 months (next anmual reporting period) 0.05 027
Between 2 and 3 years 339 1,02
Bevond 5 vears 3491 4.74
Total exjrected pavments 38.35 6.03

The weighted average duration of the defined bencfit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 10 years (31 March 2023: 9 Years).

(Ihis space has been intentionally lefi blank)
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19 Trade payables As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Total outstanding dues of micro enterpriscs and small enterprises (refer note 19.1) 22291 14.26
Total outstanding ducs of creditors other than micro enterpriscs and small cnterprises 1.366.11 [17.86
Total outstanding ducs to related partics (refer note 35) 1.740.24 17.65
Total trade pavables 3.329.26 149.71
19.1 Disclosures under Micre, Small and Medium Enterprises Act, 2006

The micro enterpriscs and small cnterprises have been identific
Development (MSMED) Act. 2006 is as follows:

d by the Company from the available information. According to such identification. the disclosures in respect to Micro. Small and Medium Enterprises

As at
31 March 2024

Particulars

As at
31 March 2023

(i) Details of dues to micro and small enicrprises as per MSMED Act. 2006 the principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining

unpaid to any supplier as at the end of cach accounting vear

- principal amount 22291 14.20
- interest amount Nil Nil
(i) The amount of interest paid by the buyer under MSMED Act, 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplicr Nil Nil
beyond the appointed day during cach accounting year:
(iii) The amount of intcrest due and payable for the period (where the principat has been paid but interest under the MSMED Act. 2006 Nil Nil
not paid):
{iv) The amount of intcrest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of ¢ach accounting year: and Nil Nil
(+) The amount of further intcrest remaining due and payable even in the succceding years. until such date when the inferest dues as Nil Nil
above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of di as a deductible expendi under section 23
19.2 Trade payables- Ageing Schedule
As at March 31, 2024 i
Particulars Outstanding for foltowing periods from due date of payment# Total
Unbilled Not Due Less than 1 vear 1-2 vears 2-3 vears More than 3 vears
(i) MSME - 20532 17.39 - - - 22291
(ii) Others 35241 2.367.62 386.32 - - - 3.106.35
Total 352,41 2,572.94 403.91 - - 3.329.26
#1. All the Trade payables of the company have a respective die date of pavment associated with them . therefore separate information is not requiired io be disclosed.
19.3 Trade payables- Ageing Schedule
As at March 31, 2023
Particulars Unbilled Not Due Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment# Total
Less than 1 vear 1-2 vears 2-3 years More than 3 years
(iy MSME - 14.20 - - - - 14.20
(ii| Others 93.63 11.69 30.19 = = = 13551
Total 93.63 25.89 30,19 - - - 149.71
21, All the Trade pavables of the company have a respective duc date of pavnient associated swith them . thevefore separate information is not required to be disclosed,
20 Other liabilitics As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Current Non-current Current Non-current
Deferred income 375.64 - 14.14 -
Advances from customers 2119 - - -
Statutory dues pavable 109.52 - 56.26 -
Total other liabili 506,35 - 70.40 -

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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21 Revenue from operations

For the year ended

For the year ended

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Revenue from operations
Sale of products 11.871.27 4.36
Sale of services 1.953.35 -
Other operating revenue
Incentive [rom State Government 187.42 -
Scrap sales 357.25 -
Total revenue from operations 14.369.29 4.36
s

Disaggregation of revenue
In the following table. revenue is disaggregated by primary geographical market. service lines and sales channels
A. Primary geegraphic markets
India 14.369.29 4.36
Rest of the world - -
Total 14,369.29 4.36
B. Timing of revenue recognition
Products transferred at a point in time 11.871.27 4.36
Total 11,871.27 4.36
C. Contract balances

3.764.99 0.13

Trade Receivables
Advance from customer

211

D. Performance obligation

The Company recognises revenue from sale of goods at the point in fime when control of the goods is transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of the goods. The performance

obligation s satisfied upon delivery of the goods and payment is generally due within 30 to 60 days from delivery.

The revenue from customers (having mote than 10% of total revenue) during the period is INR 12.795.00 Lakhs (31 March 2023 INR NIL) arising from sale of products and services.

22 Other income

For the year ended

31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Interest income on

Bank deposits 19.27 4.64
Security deposit shown at fair value 1.57 0.67
Other 1.22 -
Rental income 2,73 13.65
Miscellaneous income - 16.22
Total other income 24.79 35.18
For the year ended For the year ended

23 Cost of material consumed

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Raw material consumed*

At the beginning of year 495 -
Add: Purchases during the year 9.346.10 36,58
Less: At the end of the year 284.07 4.95
Total cost of material consumed _ 9.066.98 31.63
*Includes packing material.

24  Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Opening balance
Finished goods 4.58
Work-in-progress 21.37
Total opening balance 25,95 -
Closing balance
Finished goods 36R.69 4.58
Work-in-progress 377.35 21,37
Total closing balance 746.04 2595
Total changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-pirogress 1720.091 {25.95)
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For the year ended For the year ended

25 Employee benefits expense
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Salaries. wages and bonus 1.125.20 18.63
Contribution to provident fund and other funds 69.19 Lo4
Gratuity (refer note 18) 18.22 2.63
Compensated absences 23.56 070
StafT welfare expenses 90.87 3.26
Total emglovee benefits expense 1,327.04 26.28

25.1 Defined contribution plan
The Company has certain defined contribution plans. The contributions are made to provident fund in India for employees at the prescribed rates of the basic salary as per regulations. The
contributions are made fo recognised provident fund administered by the government. The obligation of the Company is limited to the amount contributed and it has no further contractual nor
any constructive obligation.
The expense recognised during the year towards the defined contribution plan is INR 60.73 Lakhs ( 31 March 2023 : INR 0,95 Lakhs)
26  Finance costs For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Interest
Interest expenses on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost* 2,287.27 124.30
Interest on delayed payment of statutory dues 0.12 0.44
Interest on lease liability 16.05 7.46
Others
Other borrowing cost 20.01 749
Total finance costs 232345 139.69
* Interest capitalised to Property, plant and equipment and Capital work in progress amounting to INR 899.40 Lakhs (31 March 2023 : INR 752.60 Lakhs)
27 Depreciation and amortization expense For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (refer note 3) 1.083.29 50.43
Amnortization of intangible assets (refer note 4B} 2.40 0.35
Depreciation/Amortization of right of use assets (refer note 4A) 13145 42.28
Total depreciation and amortization expense 1.217.14 93.06
28  Other expenses For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Power and (uel 844.51 27.63
Stores and spare parts including loose tools consumed 621.68 41.39
Job work charges 145,22 -
Contractual labour charges 813,40 17.62
Rent expenses 26.25 11.43
Freight and forwarding 209.13 -
Rates and taxes 17.09 41.12
Repair and mainfenance
- Plant and machinery 22.84 0.94
- Building 1851 4,44
- Others 7.88 6.20
Sales and promotion expenses 5.63 0.08
Travelling and convevance 52.50 7.21
Telephone and communication expenses 2.68 -
Insurance 2273 0.59
Securily expenses 69.08 9.07
Legal and professional expenses 67.39 2942
Payment to auditor (refer note 28.1) 9.50 245
Testing expenses 12.44 0.27
Running and maintenance of vehicle 0.86 -
Foreign exchange loss (net) 272 4.24
Amount written off 0.06 -
Bank charges 3.61 8.94
Miscellaneous expenses 2046 0.73
Total other expenses 2.996.17 213.77
28.1 Payment to auditor (excluding Geods and Services tax wherever applicable ) For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
As auditor
- Audit fee 9.00 L.o0
- Other Services 0.02 1.39
- Out of jrocket _ 0.48 0.06_

9.50 245
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For the year ended 31

For the year ended

29 Income {ax expense
March 2024 31 March 2023
(i)  Income tax expense
Current tax*
Current tax on profits for the vear - -
Adiustment of tax relating to earlier periods 1.92 -
Total carrent tax expense 192 -
Deferred tax
Deferred tax {Credit) during the vear (refer note 12.1) 350.32) -
Total deferred tax eredit (350.32) -
Tetal income fax expense (348.40) -

(i)

Reconciliation of effective tax rate:

Recongiliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic fax rate:

Particulars

For the year ended 31
March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Profit before income ax expense

(1.816.61)

Eamings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attribulable to the equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares

Other Comprehensive income before tax 4.00 -
Total comprehensive income before tax (1,812.61) -
Tax using the Company’s domestic tax rate 17.160% (311.04) -
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in calculating taxable income:

Lease related 10.94 -
Tax Provision for earlier year 1.92 -
Business loss earlier year (88.67} -
GAP in deferred tax due to Depreciation on EPCG 36.11 -
Others 2.34 -
Income tax expense 1348.40) -

30 Eaming per share
ding. The iliation of the weighted

average number of shares for the purposes of diluted eamings per share to the weighted average number of ordinary equity shares used in the calculation of basic earnings per share is as

follows:
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Opening 750,000 750,000
Shares issued duriny the vear - -
Closing weighted average number of equity shares 750,000 750,000

The numerators and denominators used to calculate the basic and diluted EPS are as follows:

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company (1.467.20) (438.94)
Weighted average number of equity shares 750,000 750.000
Nominal value per equity shares (refer note 13) 10.00 10.00
Basic and Diluted eamings per share (195.63) (38.53)

2asic and LIed ed s >
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3

32

33

34

)

o

Segment reporting
The business activity of the Company falls within one operating segment viz. ng of auto
Reporting™ issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs is not considered applicable.

Henee the disclosure requircment of Indian Accounting Standard 108 of “Segment

Capital and other commitments

Estimated amount of contracts o be d on capital account and not provided for (net of advances) is outlined in the table below:

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Property. plant and cquipment - Capital commitment (gross) 5.192.81 3.539.92

Less: Advances paid* (419.84) (816.34)

Progerty, plant and ejuipment- Capital commitment (net) 4,772.97 2,723.58

*The above amount excludes Goods and Services Tax,

Contingent liabilities
Surety bonds exceuted in favor of the President of India. under Export Promotion Capital Goods Scheme (EPCG) for importing capital goods at concessional rate of custom duty. Amount of duties and

taxes saved of INR 1,262.65 Lakhs (31 March 2023: INR 435.80 Lakhs), against which there is an unfulfilled export obligation of INR 7.575.90 Lakhs (31 March 2023: INR 2,614.80 Lakhs).
Management of the Company is confident of meeting its export obligation within stipulated time.

Financial instruments - Fair values and risk

Fair values measurement
Financial instruments - by category

The accountinz classification of cach cateuory of financial instruments, and their carrying amounts. are set out below:

Particulars As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023

o FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised Cost FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised Cost
Financial assets

Trade receivables - - 3,764.99 - - 0.13
Cash and cash equivalents - - 548 - - 111.79
Other bank balances - - L1 - - -
Deposits with original maturity for more than 12 months - - 408.10 - - 152.39
Security deposits - - 66.06 - - 123.89
Other financial assets - - L.24 - - 0.30
Total financial assets - - 4,246.98 - - 388.50
Financial liabilities

Borrowings - - 46,802.81 - - 20.666.45
Lease liability - - 192.00 - - 244.42
Trade payables - - 3.329.26 - - 14971
Capital creditors - - 873.60 - - 1,594.68
Interest accrued - - 1,678.80 - - 460.85
Emplovee related payable - - 145.87 - - 8.86
Security deposit received - - - - - 3.57
Others liabilities - - 0.17 - - -
_Tetal financial liabilities - - 53.022.51 - - 23,128.54

The canying amounts of trade receivables. trade payables, cash and cash equivalents and other current financial assets and other liabilitics are considered to be the same as their fair values, due to their

short-term nature

Financial risk management

The Company bas exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
- Credit ri
- Liquidity risk: and

- Market risk - Forcign exchange
- Market risk - Interest rate

Risk management framework
The Company’s board of directors has overall responsibility for the establish and oversight of the Company’s risk management framework. The board of directors have authorised senior managiment

to establish the processes, who ensures that executive management controls risks through the mechanism of properly defined framework.

The Company’s risk policies are established fo identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company. to set appropriate risks limits and controls. to monitor risks and adhcrence to limits. Risk
policics are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities. The Company, through its training and standards and procedures. aims to
maintain a disciplined and ive control envi in which ali emplos d  their roles and obligations.

(This spuce has been intentionally left blunk)
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(a)

)

(i)

Credit risk
esented by the total carrving amount of these financial assets in the balance sheet are as follows:

The masimum exposure to credit tisks is re
As at Asat

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Financial assets
Trads receivables 3.764.99 0.13
Cash and cash equivalents 5.48 111,79
Other bank balances L1t -
Deposits with original maturity for more than 12 months 408.10 152.39
Security deposits 66.06 123.89
Other financial asscts 1.24 _ 0.30
Total financial assets _ 4,246.98 388.50

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to mect its contractual obligations. and arises principally from the Company’s receivables

from customers. loans.

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited as the Company generally invests in deposits with banks with high credit ratings assigned by domestic credit rating ageneies.

The maximum exposure to the credit risk at the reporting date is primarily from trade receivables Trade recoivables are unsccured and are derived from revenue eamed from customers primarily located in

India. The Company does monitor the in which it op
Credit risk has always been managed by the Company through credit approvals. establishing credit limits and continuoush- monitoring the creditworthingss of customers to-which the Company grants
credit terms in the normal course of business. The Company uses expected credit loss (ECL) model to assess the impaiment loss or gain. The Company uses a provision matrix to compute the expected

credit loss allowance for trade receivables. The provision matrix takes into account available external and infernal credit risk factors such as Company’s historical expericnce for customers.

Expected credit loss for investment carried at amortised cost and other financial assets

As at 31 March 2024
Estimated gross Expected Expected credit Carrying amount
Asset group carrying amount  probability of loss net of
of default default impairment
Cash and cash equivalents 5.48 1V - 5.48
Other bank balances 111 0% - 111
Deposits with original maturity for more than 12 months 408.10 0% - 408.10
Security deposits 66.06 0% - 66.06
Other financial asscts 1.24 0% - 1.24
As at 31 March 2023 .
Estimated gross Expected Expected credit Carrying amount
carrying amount  probability of loss net of
Asset group of default default impairment
provision
Cash and cash equivalents 111.79 0% - 111.79
Security deposits 123.89 0% = 123.89
Other financial assets 0.30 0% - 0.30

The credit risk for investment carricd at amortised cost and other financial assets is considercd negligible. However, specific provision is made in case a particular receivable is considered to be non -

recoverable.

Expected credit loss for trade receivables under simplified approach

The Comypiany’s exposure to credit risk for trade receivables is as follows:

Gross carrving amount

Particulars
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Trade ivabl idered good - Us d = 0.13
Total 0.13
Less : Provision for impairment - -
‘Carrving amount of trade receivables (net of impairment| 3.764.99 0.13

(This space hus been intentionally left blunk)
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(b) Liquidity risk
Prudent liquidi

when due. Duc to the nature of the busincss. the Company maintains flexibility in funding by

ailability under

| facilitics. M

risk management implics maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securitis and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit factlitics to meet obligations
i i i monitors rolling forecasts of the Company’s

liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. The Compatry takes into account the liquidity of the market i which the entity operates. In addition. the Compamy’'s
liquidity management policy involves projecting cash flows in major currencics and considuring the level of liquid asscts neoessary to muet these, monitoring balance sheet liquidity ratios against internal
debt fi ing plans

and cxternal latory req and

Maturities of financial liabilities
The tables below analyses the Company’s financial liabilitics into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities for all non-derivative financial liabilitics. The amounts disclosed in the

table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrving balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.

As at 31 March 2024

Contractual cash flows

6 months or

More than §

6-12 months 1-2 years 2-5 years Total
less vears
Financial liabilities - borrowings* 3.825.28 3,692.98 7,044.02 38.567.98 8,841.35 61,971.61
Lease liabilities** 43.17 34.13 30.83 88.94 - 217.09
Trade pavables 3,329.26 - - - - 3,329.26
Other financial liabilitics 1.166.21 - 1.532.23 - - 2,698.44
Total 8,363.92 3,727.13 8,627.08 38,656.92 8,841.35 68,216.40
As at 31 March 2023 Contractual cash flows —
6 months or 6-12 months 1-2 years 2-5 years More than 5 Total
less vears
Financial liabilities - borrowings* 664.75 1,52538 6,02382 14,748 21 3,923.56 26,885.72
Lease liabilities** 38.73 39.70 7231 133.07 - 283.81
Trade pavables 149.71 - - - - 149.71
Other financial liabilitics 1.692.51 - 375.45 - - 2,067.96
Total 2,545.69 1,565.08 6,471.58 14,881.28 3,923.56 29,387.19

*This amount includes future undiscounted cash flows for intcrest on term loans INR 15168.8 Lakhs (March 31, 2023: INR 6,219.26 Lakhs).
#%This amount includes future undiscounted cash flows for interest on lease liabilities INR 25.09 Lakhs (March 31. 2023: INR 39.38 Lakhs).

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises two types of risk: currency risk and interest rate risk.

The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters. whilke optimising the return.

{c

(i) Currency risk
Currency risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company is exposed to the effects of fluctuation in the
provailing foreign eurrency exchange rates on its financial position and cash flows. Exposure ariscs primarily due to exchange rate fluctuations between the functional currency and other currencies from
the Company’s operating, investing and financing activitics.

The summary of Juantitative data about the Company’s unhedred exposure to currency risk, as expressed in INR, as at 31 March 2024.

As at 31 March 2024

Particulars _ As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2024
Amount in foreign currency Exchange rate Amount in INR o
USD EURO YEN USD EURO YEN USD EURO YEN
Financial assets
Trade receivables - - 3 83.37 90.22 0.53 - - -
Financial liabilities
Trade pavables - - - 8337 90.22 0.55 - - -
Capital creditors 0.38 0.03 35.00 83.37 90.22 0.55 32.06 1928
0.38 0.03 35.00 32.06 19.28

There is no foreign currency risk as on March 31, 2023.

Sensitivity analysis
A reasonably possible strengthening (weakening) of the Indian Rupee against below currencics at 31 March 2024 would have affected the measurement of financial instruments denominated in functional

currency and affected equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below, This analysis is performied on foreign currency denominated monetary financial assets and financial liabilitics outstanding as at
the year end. This analysis assumes that all other variables. in particular intercst rates. remain constant and ignores any impact of forecast sales and purchases.

Particulars As at 31 March 2024

USD sensitivity*

INR/USD- increase by 1.41% (0.43)
INR/USD- decrease by 1.41% 045

EURO sensitivity*

INR/EUROQ- increase by 0.68% (0.02)
INR/EURQ- deerease by 0.68% 0.02

JPY sensitivity*

INR/IPY - increase by 10.86% 2.09

INR/JPY- decrease by 10.86% . 2.09
* Holding all other variables constant
Note- We have considered change in rate by the difference in closing and opening rate.
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(i)

an

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a tinancial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s main interest rate risk arises from long-term

borrowings and shert term bortowings with variable rates.

Interest rate risk exposure

The Company’s interest rate risk arises majorly from the term loans from banks carrving floating rate of interest. The exposure of the Company’s borrowing to interest rate changes as reported to the

‘management at the end of the reporting jieviod arc as follows:
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Variable rate borrowing 36.180.63 20.666.45
Weighted averaye interest rate 8.81% 7.56%

Sensitivity analysis

A reasonably possible change of 100 basis points (bps) in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased  (decreased) equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis

assumes that all other variables. in particular foreien curreney exchanze rates. remain constant.
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Interest sensitivity®
Interest rates — increase by 100 basis points (100 bps) {361.8]) (115.93)
Interest rates — d by 100 basis points (100 bps| 361.81 115.95

* Holding all other variables constant

Capital management
For the purpose of the Company’s capital management. capital includes issued equity share capital, seeurities premium reserve and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the
Company. The primary objective of the management of the Company’s capital structure is to maintain an efficient mix of debt and cquity in order to achieve a low cost of capital, while taking into account

the desirability of retaining financial flexibility to pursuc business opportunitics and adequate access to liquidity to mitigate the effect of unforeseen events on cash flows.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in cconomic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may retuim capital to

sharcholders. raise new debt or issue new shares.

The Company monitors capital on the basis of the debt to capital ratio. which is calculated as adjusted net interest-bearing debts divided by total capital.

Particulars Legend As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Long term borrowings (refer note 13) 46.791.40 20.666.45
-From hanks 26.862.00 15.450.35
-From Holding Company 19.929.40 5.215.91
Short term borrowings (refer note 13) 1141 -
Less ; Cash and cash cquivalent (refer note 9) (5.48) (111,79
Adjusted net debt A 46,797.33 20,554.66
Total capital (refer note 13 and 14} B (1,858.40) (394.19)
Net debt to equity ratio A/B {25.18) {52.14)
Net debt to equity ratio considering borrowings from holding company as quasi equity.
Particulars Legend As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Long term borrowings (refer note 15) 26.862.00 15.450.55
-From banks 26,862.00 15,450.55
Less : Cash and cash equivalent (refer note 9) (5.48) (111.79)
Adjusted net debt A 26,856.52 15,338.76
Long term borrowings (refer note 13) 19.929 40 3.215.90
-From Holding Company 19,929.40 3.215.90
Total capital (refer note 13 and 14) (1.858.40} (394.19)
Total capital {Considering borrowings from Holding company quassi equity ) B 18,071.00 4,821.71
Net debt to equity ratie A/B 1.49 3.18

(This space has heen intentionally left blank)
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(i)

(i)

Related party disclosures
Disclosure of related partics/related party transactions pursuant (o Ind AS 24 ~ Related Party Disclosures”™

Name of the related parties and nature of the refated party relationship:

Name of the person / entity

Designation / Principal place of operation or
country of incorporation

Key management personnel and relatives of key management personnel ("KMP™)
Mr. Kuldip Singh Rathee

Mr. Prashant Rathce

Mr. Aman Rathee

Mr. Rajesh Kataria

Holding Company
ASK Automotive Limited (Formerhy knowa as ASK Automotive Private Limited |

Director
Director
Director
Director

India

Particulars of transactions with related partics

Securi

Nature of transaction and name of related party For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Corporate guarantees received in favour of banks on account of facilitics granted by banks to us
ASK Automotive Limited 8.700.00 4.000.00 |
Receiving of service/job work*
ASK Automotive Limited 5541 24.12
Rent received*
ASK Automotive Limited 2.81 15.45
Sales of goods*
ASK Automotive Limited 64.28 1.61
Rendering of services/job work*
ASK Automotive Limited 219075 -
Recovery of expenses incurred on behalf of
ASK Automotive Limited 1547 -
Sales of fixed assets*
ASK Automotive Limited L06 363.61
Purchasc of goods*
ASK Automotive Limited 7,154.89 3845 |
Purchase of fixed assets*
ASK Automotive Limited 388.67 265.78
¢ deposit received
ASK Automotive Limited - 3.57
|Sceurity deposit refunded 3.57 -
ASK Automotive Limited
Loan received (Net)
ASK Automotive Limited 14.713.50 3.115.80
Interest accrued on loan reeeived
ASK Automotive Limited 1,285.30 365.20
*Transactions have been reported inclusive of applicable taxes.
Balance outstanding at the end of the year
Nature of balances and name of related party As at| As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Equity shares capital
ASK Automotive Limited 75.00 75.00
Corporate guarantees given to banks on account of facilitics granted by banks
ASK Automotive Limited 34.100.00 25,400.00
Trade payables
ASK Automotive Limited
- Capilal creditors 1.18 198.95
- Trade payables 1.740.24 17.65
Trade receivables
ASK Automotive Limited 221.34
Sceurity deposit payable
ASK Automotive Limited - 3.57
Loan payable
ASK Automotive Limited 19929 40 521590
Interest payable

ASK Automotive Limited o
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36 Quarterly Statements submitted to Bank

The Company has borrowings from banks and financial institutions (Refer note no 15).
The periodical statements of current assets* submitted by the company with the banks and financial institutions are in agreement with books of account

except as under:

For the year ended 31 March 2024

Quarter Name of Bank [Particulars [Amount as per Amount as Difference Reason for material

of books of reported in the discrepancies

Securities account quarterly

Provided statement
Fune 2023 = «x | Not Applicable | Not Applicable i Not Applicable
September 2023 ok = 825.65 825.65 Not Applicable
December 2023 ok ** 1,671.17 1.671.17 Not Applicable
March 2024 ok i 1,672.72 1,672.72 Not Applicable

* Current Assets = Inventories + Trade Receivables - Trade Payables

** Name of Bank & Securities provided
Name of Bank
Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited:

Particulars of Securities provided

Working capital facility is secured by first and exclusive hypothecation charge on all existing and future
receivables/ current assets / moveable assets / moveable fixed assets of the borrower. The said loan is
also secured by first and exclusive charge on immovable property being land and building situated at Plot
No. SP4-315, Industrial Area Karoli (Auto Zone), Alwar.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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37 Capital work in progess (CWIP)

(A) CWIP ageing schedule

As at 31 March 2024

Amount in CWIP for a period of
More than 3 vears

Total

CWIP Less than 1 vear 1-2 vears 2-3 vears

Project in progress 6,405.79 1,088.54 - - 7,494.33
Total 6,405.79 1,088.54 - - 7,494.33
As at 31 March 2023 Amount in CWIP for a period of

CWIP Less than 1 vear 1-2 vears 2-3 vears More than 3 years Total
Project in progress 11,349.60 133.00 - - 11,482.60
Total 11,349.60 133.00 = - 11,482.60

Capital work in progress whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost as compared to its original plan is Nil as at 31 March 2024 (31 March 2023: Nib).

38 Leases

The Company recorded the lease liability at the present value of the remaining lease payments discounted at the incremental borrowing rate of bank and has measured right-of-use

asset at an amount equal to lease hability.

Right of use assets {Net block):

Particulars Amount

As at 1 April 2022 7,410.63
Additions 414.98
Deletions -
Depreciation during the year 118.82
As at 1 April 2023 7,706.79
Additions 1,740.65
Deletions -
Dejreciation during the year 280.39
As at 31 March 2024 9.167.05

During the year, depreciation on Leasehold land capitalised to Property, plant and equipment and Capital work in progress amounting to INR 148.93 Lakhs (31 March 2023: INR

76.54 Lakhs).

Lease liability:

Particulars Amount

As at 1 April 2022 93.13
Additions 408.60
Deletions -

Interest 7.46
Repayment made during the year (including interest) (264.77)
As at 1 April 2023 244.42
Additions 13,79
Deletions -

Interest 16.05
Repayment made during the year (including interest) (82,171
As at 31 March 2024 192.00

Maturity profile of Lease liability:

Year ¢ended 31 March 2024

Particulars within 1 vear 1-3 vears 3-5 vears Abave 5 vears Total

Lease payments (Cash) 77.74 100.19 39.16 - 217.09
Less:- Interest payments 11.61 12.45 1.04 - 25.09
Lease Principat 66.13 87.74 38.12 - 192.00
Year ended 31 March 2023

Particulars within 1 sear 1-3 vears 3-8 vears Above S vears Total

Lease payments (Cash) 78.43 166.22 39.16 - 283.81
Less:~ Interest pavments 15.32 23,03 1.04 - 39.39
Lease Principal 63.11 143.19 38.12 - 244.42

Following amount has been recognised in statement of profit and loss account:

For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Depreciation on right of use asset {refor note no. 4A) 13145 4228
Interest on lease liabilities (refer note no. 26) 16.05 7.46
Expenses related to short term leases {included in Rent under other ex| senses) (refer note no. 28) 26.25 11.43
173.7% 61.17

Total amount recognized in statement of profit and loss
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39 Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 7 "Statement of cash flows”- changes in liabilities arising from financing activities:

40
()

As at 31 March 2024:

Particulars Borrowings Interest acerued on Total
(refer note 15) borrowings
(refer note 17)

Opening balance as at 1 April 2023 20.666.45 460.85 21,127.30

(a) Changes from financing cash flow 26,136.36 {1,968.73) 24.167.63

(b) Interest charge to statement of profit and loss - 2,287.27 2,287.27

(c) Interest capitalised to Property plant and equipment and Capital work in propress - 899.40 899.40

Closing balance as at 31 March 2024 46,802.81 1,678.80 48,481.61

As at 31 March 2023:

Particulars Borrowings Interest accrued on Total

(refer note 15) borrowings
{refer note 17) R

Opening balance as at 1 April 2022 7,611.28 73.92 7,685.20

(a) Changes from financing cash flow 13,055.17 (489.97) 12,565.20

(b) Interest charge to statement of profit and loss - 124.30 124.30

(¢} Interest capitalised to Capital work in progress - 752.60 752.60

Closing balance as at 31 March 2023 20,666.45 460.85 21,127.30

Other disclosures required as per schedule 111 -

Analytical Ratios

Ratios Numerator Denominator As at As at Variance Reasons

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

(a) Current Ratio (in times} Current assets Current liabilities 0.78 0.51 51.31% Due to increase in
current assets by
INR 6,699.60 Lakhs
mainly on account of
trade receivables and
increase in current
liability by INR
7,678.29 Lakhs
mainly on account of
trade payables and
borrowing.

(b) Debt-Equity Ratio {in times) Total Debt Shareholder's equity (2529 (53.05) -52.33% Due to increase in
(including lease borrowings and
liabilitiy) decrease in

shareholders equity

Ratios Numerator Denominator As at As at Variance Reasons

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

(c) Debt Service Coverage Ratio (in times) Earnings available ~ Debt Service -0.88 0.53 -265.12% Due to increase in
for Debt Service (Interest and lease Earning available for
(Profit after payments + Debt Service by INR
tax+Depreciation & Principal 2,279.58 Lakhs and
Amortisation+financ repayments) also increase in Debt
e cost) service by INR.

1,080.39 Lakhs.

(d) Return on Equity Ratio (in %) Net Profit for the Average 130.00% 251.23% -48.25% % decrease in total

year shareholders equity loss is greater than
% decrease in total
equity.

Cost of Goods Sold  Average Inventory 13.01 025 52.05 Cost of Goods sold

(e) Inventory turnover Ratio (in times)

and
inventory

average
has

increased due fto
start of operations
during current year
as there were no
significant
operations in
previous year.
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() Trade Receivables turnover Ratio (in times) Revenue trom Average trade 7.63 67.08 (0.89) Due to increase in
operations receivables revenue from
operattons INR
14.364.93 Lakhs as
well as increase in
trade receivable by
INR 1,882.50 Lakhs.
(g) Trade payables turnover Ratio (in times) ~ Purchase + Other  Average trade 7.10 323 119.59% Percentage increase
expenses payables in purchase is
greater than increase
in trade payable
(h) Net capital turnover Ratio (in times) Revenue from Working Capital (6.07) {0.00) 193426% Refer note 2 below*
operations {current assets -
current liabilities)
(1) Net profit Ratio (in %) Net Profit for the Revenue from -10.19% -10067.44% -100% Due to loss
year operations increased by INR
1,025.27 Lakhs and
increase in revenue
from operations by
INR 14,364.93
Lakhs.
(j) Return on Capital employed (in %) EBIT (Profit before Capital employed 1.72% -221% -177.82% Due to increase .in
tax + Finance cost)  (Average Total Earning before
Equity + Average interest and tax INR
Non Current 806.09 Lakhs and
liabilities (excluding also  increase In
lease liabilities)} capital employed by
INR 15,916.59
Lakhs.
(k) Return on investment (in %) Income generated  Average invested - - Refer note 1 below*
from treasury tunds in
investments treasury investments
*Note:

1. This ratio is not applicable as there are no investments made by the Contpany.
2. This ratio is not comparable.

(b) The Company has not invested or traded in crypto currency & virtual currency.

(¢) The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities {intermediaries) with the understanding that the

intermediary shall:
(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries); or

(i1} provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;
(d) The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or
otherwise) that the Company shall:
(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
(e) The Company has used borrowings from Banks and financial institutions for the specific purpose for which it was taken at the balance sheet date.

(f) The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other lender.

(g) The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act. 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act. 1961.

(h) There has not been any proceedings initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)

=2

and rules made thereunder.

(i) Relationship with struck off companies

The Company has no transaction/ Balance with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 to the best of the knowledge of the Company’s management.

() The Company does not have any charges or satisfactions, which is yet to be registered with Registrar of companies, beyond the statutory period prescribed under the Companies
Act 2013 and the rutes made thereunder.
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(k) The provision of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) is not applicable to the Company as the limits specified under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not met.

(1) No significant subsequent events have been observed which may require an adjustment to the Ind AS financial statement,

41 Recent pronouncements
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA™) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from
time to time, For the year ended March 31, 2024, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards applicable to the Company.

42 Certain amounts (currency value or percentages) shown in various tables and paragraphs included in these financial statements have been rounded off or truncated as deemed
appropriate by the management of the Company.

43 The Company is using an accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the accounting software, except that audit trail feature was not enabled at the database level for accounting software to
log any direct data changes, used for maintenance of all accounting records by the Company. Presently, the Company don’t have access to the database and we have raised the
request to support partner for enabling the audit trail in system.

44 Previous period figures regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary to confirm to current year's classification pursuant to amendment in Schedule III of the Act.

45  Authorisatien of financial statements
The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 were approved by the board of directors on 17 May 2024

For B.B. & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants ASK Automobiles Private Limited

Firm's Registration No.: 023670N
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